
Kentucky Transportation Cabinet
Department of Highways

Frankfort, Kentucky 40622

Meeting Minutes
February 7, 2013

Background

A Pre-bid conference was held for the Glover Cary Bridge in Owensboro, Kentucky
(Dist. 2).  

Present:
KYTC
Tom Mathews Bryan K. Mayes Kenny Potts Jordan Camp
Keith Edge O’Dail Lawson Kevin McClearn Keith Todd
Michael Baase Kevin Collignon Chris Ward

Contractors
Nick Kalouris North Star Painting Ioannis Kalouris North Star Painting
Emmanuel Pilatos North Star Painting Gum Trihilis North Star Painting
Nick S. 
Frangopoulos

Vimas Painting Co., 
Inc.

Panormitis Xipolitas Vimas Painting Co., 
Inc.

John Tinois Vimas Painting Co., 
Inc.

Nick Frangos Liberty 
Maintenance Inc.

Emanuel Gialousis Adelphi Inc., G-
Force

Michael Xipolitas KMX Painting Inc.

Emanuel Koullias KMX Painting Inc. Brian Balzli Hercules Painting 
Company

Apostolos 
Hazimihalis

Spartan Contracting Nick Hazimihalis Spartan Contracting

James Svoboda ABHE & Svoboda, 
Inc.

Judy Harp Judy C. Harp Co.

Steve Harp Judy C. Harp Co. David R. Houchin Intech Contracting, 
LLC

Brad Wilder Intech Contracting, 
LLC

Mike Kalouris B r us

Michael Kerpelis M & J Painting Ioannis Aslanis M & J Painting
Antonios 
Aikaterinidis

Alpha Painting and 
Construction

Pete Mattheos Panther Industrial

Vasilis Katsourakis APBN, Inc. Nikitas Katsourakis APBN, Inc.
John Korfiatis Blastech 

Enterprises, Inc.
Pete Korfiatis Blastech 

Enterprises, Inc.
Phil Zembillas Blastech 

Enterprises, Inc.



Others
Rick Younce KTC John O’Bryan PPG
Jim Smith PPG Adam Adler Sherwin Williams

A. Pre-Bid Conference

The meeting was convened at 10:00 A.M (Central Time) by Tom Mathews of KYTC.

Question and Answer

Q: Emanuel Gialousis from G-Force asked outside of the limitations of season one and 
season two, weather permitting, can they do any work underneath the structure as long as 
they don’t affect the traffic.  
A: Tom Mathews stated that he would address this question when he gets to the general 
note for maintain and control traffic.  See Addendum 1.

Q: Mike Kalouris from Bridges R Us asked if there were any limitations to the size of the 
containment.
A: Tom Mathews stated that would be based on the engineers design for their 
containment.

Q: Mike Kalouris from Bridges R Us asked why they don’t have the option to use sand.
A: Tom Mathews stated that that is the policy KYTC has been using for years. Mike 
Baase stated that it because of the debris that is being sent to Doe Run.

Q: James Svoboda from ABHE & Svoboda, Inc. asked if KYTC has a certain 
specification for the containment design or is it open ended.
A: Mike Baase stated that the reason KYTC has the contractor’s licensed engineer to 
design these is so that they do not overload the bridge.

Q: James Svoboda from ABHE & Svoboda, Inc. asked if there would be another engineer
for KYTC that would review and approve the design.
A: Tom Mathews and Mike Baase stated that they would review it. They also stated that 
there is not an approval process.

Q: Mike Baase from KYTC stated that there is currently overspray on the concrete from 
the last time that it was painted.
A: Tom Mathews stated they would have to make note of that.

Q: Mike Kalouris from Bridges R Us stated that when they are blasting the lower channel 
they would probably do some damage to the concrete and asked if they needed to protect 
that.
A: Tom Mathews stated yes, they needed to take all precautions not to damage the 
concrete.  



Q: Nick S. Frangopoulos from Vimas Painting Co., Inc. stated that there was conduit 
underneath the bottom rail channel that is attached to the channel and asked if they were 
supposed to remove that to keep from damaging it.
A: Tom Mathews stated that that would be an option but they needed to protect it and he 
would get further into that when he discussed the note for utilities.  See Pre-Bid Field 
Review Questions.

Q: Mike Kalouris from Bridges R Us asked if they needed to do soil samples.
A: Tom Mathews stated that it would be up to the contractor.

Q: Brad Wilder from Intech Contracting, LLC asked if it would be hazardous waste or 
hazardous material.
A: Tom Mathews stated that it would be their recyclable material which will be 
considered hazardous.

Q: Brad Wilder from Intech Contracting, LLC asked if KYTC will set up the EPA 
number.
A: Tom Mathews stated yes.

Q: Mike Kalouris from Bridges R Us stated that the contractor does a lot of stripping for 
each coat of paint and that takes longer than the blasting asked why KYTC does not have 
an item listed for that.
A: Mike Baase stated that KYTC considers this as part of the full coat and incidental to 
that operation.

Q: O’Dail Lawson from KYTC asked they were doing air monitoring on this project.
A: Tom Mathews stated yes.

Q: Mike Kalouris from Bridges R Us asked if they had to run a background and run it 
through the length of the project.
A: Tom Mathews stated they needed to do the background check 3 days prior to 
mobilization and run the test throughout the project.

Q: Mike Kalouris from Bridges R Us asked if that would be for the duration of the 
blasting.
A: Mike Baase stated for the entire duration that the containment tarps are on the bridge.



Q: Nick S. Frangopoulos from Vimas Painting Co., Inc. asked if the cabinet is aware of 
any of the cities noise ordinances.
A: Tom Mathews stated that he would get that information and get it posted.  
Message from Joe Schepers, City of Owensboro:

I talked to the City Attorney to be sure, but you will NOT need a variance for the work.  
Typical construction projects are exempt.  If your contractor chooses to work at night 
etc., then we will request they talk to us, but on a standard daytime project he will not 
need anything more from us.  He can use me as a contact if he chooses to work at night. 

Contact information will be supplied to the awarded contractor at the pre-construction 
meeting.

Q: Nick S. Frangopoulos from Vimas Painting Co., Inc. asked if the cabinet considers 
any portion of this structure as inaccessible.
A: Mike Baase stated that if they have to disassemble it, it is inaccessible.

Q: Nick S. Frangopoulos from Vimas Painting Co., Inc. stated that during their site visit 
they noticed that the deck pans are relatively new and when they are blasting and painting 
structural steel adjacent to it they will have ricochet and a little galvanize damage and 
asked how does the cabinet want the contractor to address that.
A: Tom Mathews stated for them to put the coating over the damaged spot that will be 
put onto the steel.

Q: Mike Baase from KYTC asked if the light poles are to be painted.
A: Tom Mathews stated yes.

Q: Nick Kalouris from North Star Painting asked why there was no payment for rigging 
and containment because that is an expensive item that the contractor has to pay for up 
front.
A: Mike Baase stated KYTC pays for production work but mobilization takes care of part 
of that.

Q: John Korfiatis from Blastech Enterprises, Inc. asked that even with the 37 tons with 
the live load is that the maximum.
A: Tom Mathews stated yes.

Q: Steve Harp from Judy C. Harp Co. asked if they would be allowed to do all repairs in 
season one.
A: Tom Mathews stated yes.

Q: Mike Kalouris from Bridges R asked if their equipment had to be under the bridge 
during the 2nd season.
A: Tom Mathews stated yes. See Addendum 1.



Q: Mike Kalouris from Bridges R asked if they were allowed to close a lane why they 
couldn’t bring their equipment up top.
A: Tom Mathews stated that he would answer that when he got to the next note. See 
Addendum 1.
Q: David R. Houchin of Intech Contracting, LLC stated that section III A of the bridge 
pier repair states that the contractor is responsible for reviewing the effects of removals 
on the structural integrity of the bridge and asked if KYTC was going to tell the 
contractor what they need to take out.
A: Tom Mathews stated he would get an answer to this question. See Addendum 1.

Q: John Korfiatis from Blastech Enterprises, Inc. asked if during season two is there any 
bridge closures available.
A: Tom Mathews stated that at the discretion of the engineer they might be able to do 
some night time closures just like during the first season.

Q: John Korfiatis from Blastech Enterprises, Inc. asked if there are any daytime closures.
A: Tom Mathews stated no.  See Addendum 1.

Q: John Korfiatis from Blastech Enterprises, Inc. asked if they have any temporary 
closures during the day.
A: Tom Mathews stated yes, but it is intended for the purpose of the railing only.  See 
Addendum 1.

Q: Mike Kalouris from Bridges R asked if they had a small recycler could they be on the 
bridge daily.
A: Tom Mathews stated yes, as long as the equipment can be moved off the bridge fairly 
quickly.  See Addendum 1.

Q: Mike Kalouris from Bridges R asked if there is a time restriction on the day time 
closures.
A: Tom Mathews stated they would discuss this later and post their answer.  See 
Addendum 1.

Q: Emanuel Gialousis from G-Force asked if they would have to request the short 
duration lane closures for daytime work per basis or can they just do it on their own.
A: Keith Todd stated a three day notice would be sufficient.  See Addendum 1.

Q: Emanuel Gialousis from G-Force asked if the state would put out a notice.
A: Tom Mathews stated yes, but they would discuss this topic more and have a more 
complete answer for all questions concerning this matter.  See Addendum 1.

Q: John Korfiatis from Blastech Enterprises, Inc. asked stated that below the deck truss 
there is an area with a couple of feet of mud and asked if there was any restrictions on 
doing some side work to create a staging area.
A: Tom Mathews stated no.  See Pre-Bid Field Review Questions.



Q: John Korfiatis from Blastech Enterprises, Inc. asked if there are any wetlands or 
anything of this nature.
A: Kevin McClean stated that there were never any problems in the past.

Q: Tom Mathews from KYTC asked if the contractor makes a gravel bed to stabilize the 
area do they have to remove the gravel when the project is complete. 
A: Kevin McClean stated no, they can leave it.  See Pre-Bid Field Review Questions.

Q: Pete Korfiatis from Blastech Enterprises, Inc. asked if there is any pedestrian traffic on 
the bridge.
A: Tom Mathews stated no.

Q: John Korfiatis from Blastech Enterprises, Inc. asked if there are any as-built drawings 
available. 
A: Tom Mathews stated yes. See Pre-Bid Field Review Questions.

Q: Ioannis Aslanis from M & J Painting asked if they could use black beauty. 
A: Tom Mathews stated no. 

Q: John Korfiatis from Blastech Enterprises, Inc. asked if there are details on the bearing 
replacement or will it be up to the contractor to get them.
A: Tom Mathews stated that it is just anchor bolt retro fits and there shouldn’t be any 
jacking or supporting on this project. See the attached detailed drawings in the proposal,
Sheets 49-58.

Tom Mathews stated that there would be an addendum on the day and night closures with 
more details concerning the dates and times.  See addendum 1

Q: John Korfiatis from Blastech Enterprises, Inc. asked if there would be a lane closure 
for the site visit. 
A: Kevin McClean stated that they would not have traffic control set up. 

Meeting was adjourned at approximately 11:10 A.M.

Minutes submitted by: Rick Younce

Approved by: Tom Mathews



CALL #302 NUMBER #132950

DISTRICT NO. 2
BRIDGE CLEANING AND PAINTING

DAVIESS COUNTY
02-07-2013 Pre-Bid Field Review Questions

   
Q.  Will existing structure plans be made available to the contractor?

A. Yes, the existing structure plans will be posted under the “project related 
information” link on the Cabinet’s Construction Procurement web site.

 Q.  Can the conduit below the bottom bridge rail channel on the KY approach vault may  
 be removed and re-attached to accommodate cleaning and painting operations?

A. The contractor may remove and re-attach the conduit below the bottom bridge 
rail  channel on the KY approach vault for cleaning and painting operations.
All street lights on the structure shall be maintained if this portion of cleaning 
and painting is performed if the structure is opened to traffic.
All cost to remove the conduit shall be incidental to Lump Sum Bid for Clean and 
Paint Structural steel.

 Q.   Do the utility conduits on the structure get cleaned and painted.

 A.   Yes the conduits shall be painted. The contractor shall tool clean rusted areas to   
 an SSPC-SP3  of the metal conduits only and apply the top coat of paint as 
 specified to all conduits as specified.

  Q.   Where can the Contractor stage on the Kentucky and Indiana side.

 A.   The state has right of way easements 50 feet each side of centerline of the 
 structure.  The Contractor may place gravel, road bed material, etc approved 
 by the Engineer to shore equipment in locations of the right of way approved by
 the Engineer on the Indiana side.  Any material place in the right of way shall

  remain in place after the contract is completed.

 Q.   Has a waste storage site been determined?

 A.   Yes, the waste storage site will be located at the KYTC Daviess County 
 Maintenance Facility, 1813 W 9 Street, Owensboro, KY.

 Please check back with our web site for any new addendums, bulletins, Information, 
 Etc. related to this proposal.
 http://www.transportation.ky.gov/Construction-Procurement












